
 

 
 
 
 
 

OHIO TURNPIKE AND  
INFRASTRUCTURE COMMISSION 

 
ADDENDUM NO. 1 

ISSUED APRIL 15, 2021 
 

PROJECT NO.  58-21-01  
 

NEW MAINLINE TOLL PLAZA FACILITY 
UTILITY BUILDINGS, TOLL BOOTHS & CANOPIES 

MILEPOST 4 
WILLIAMS COUNTY, OHIO 

ISSUED MARCH 25, 2021 
 
 

OPENING DATE:  2:00 P.M. (EASTERN TIME), APRIL 22, 2021 
 

ATTENTION OF BIDDERS IS DIRECTED TO: 
ANSWERS TO QUESTIONS RECEIVED THROUGH 2:00 P.M. ON April 14, 2021 

 
 

Plan Sheets: G003, G007, C106, C107, S002, A104, A201, A202, A203, A204, A205, A405, A501, 
A502, A704, A801, P201, P202, P503, M104, E102, E103, E104, E105, E107, E109, E110, E116, 
E118, E122, E123, E124, E129, E130, E132, E133, I104, I113, I114, I115, I116, I124, and I126 

 
-AND- 

 
Specifications: INDEX, 074213 and 075419 

 
-AND- 

 
Estimated Quantity Worksheet 

Reference Nos.: None 
 
 

Issued by the Ohio Turnpike and Infrastructure Commission through Jennifer L. Stueber, Esq., General 
Counsel. 
 
 
   
____________________________   April 15, 2021    
Jennifer L. Stueber, Esq.,        Date     
General Counsel 
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ANSWERS TO QUESTIONS RECEIVED THROUGH 2:00 P.M. ON April 14, 2021: 
 

Q#1 Will there be any fire protection on this project? 
 
A#1 Fire protection items included in the Project are fire exinguishers and a fire alarm system.  A 

sprinkler system is not required. 
 
 
Q#2 I am requesting that the Ohio Turnpike Infrastructure Commission revise all future projects 

that include roofing would allow for mechanically attached in lieu of adhered. 
 
A#2 This Addendum No. 1 revises Specification Section 075419 to allow the roof to be mechanically 

fastened. 
 
 
Q#3 Gypsum Underlayment 035413 was used on the previous project, I’m not seeing it used on 

this one.  Please confirm. 
 
A#3 This Addendum No. 1 removes Specification Section 035413 - Gypsum Cement Underlayment 

from this project. 
 
 
Q#4 Chain Link Fence & Gates 323113.  I’m not seeing any work associated with this 

specification shown on the plans, please confirm. 
 
A#4 There are three Slide Gate Operators with a chain link fence on this Project.  One on the north 

side and two are on the south side.  The location of the gates can be found on Plan Sheets I102 
and I103 and the Gate Detail is provided on Plan Sheet E133.  

 
 
Q#5 For the wood fencing, please confirm if the material is to be pressure treated  or cedar.  I’ve 

seen details calling for both materials. 
 
A#5 The Civil Drawing Detail on Plan Sheet C119 and the Specifications Section 323129 call for the 

framing and fence slats to be Cedar and the Specification Section 323129 calls for the posts to 
be pressure treated. 

 
 
Q#6 General Note #1, A604 states, all exterior windows to have solid surface sills.  The detail of 

the bridge “F” windows show break metal surrounds.  Please confirm the F windows do not 
have solid surface window sills. 

 
A#6 Type F windows do not receive a solid surface sill. 
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Q#7 The Estimated Quantities Worksheet is mislabeled with project number 58-20-01 (Rebid). 
 
A#7 This Addendum No. 1 revises the Estimated Quantities Worksheet Title Project Number to read 

58-21-01. 
 
 
Q#8 Drawings 151, 153 and 187 show Access Control Panels in the Main Bldg. & Secondary Bldg. 

Are these to be supplied and installed under contract 58-21-01?  If so, please provide details 
and specifications for these panels. 

 
A#8 The Access Control headend equipment to include Access Control Panels, Power Supplies, S2 

Nodes, and Data Switch shall be provided by the Commission. All electric door hardware, card 
readers, and cabling shall be provided under 58-21-01 Contract. 

 
 
Q#9 Drawings 155, 156 and 157 show wireless access points on the bridge and in both buildings. 

Is the wireless access point hardware to be supplied and installed under contract 58-21-01 or 
should the contractors supply and install jack outlets only?  If the wireless access points or 
additional equipment is required please provide a specification for it. 

 
A#9 Contractor shall provide the outlet jacks and the CAT6 cable shall be routed back to the patch 

panel. The wireless access point hardware shall be provided by Commission. 
 
 
Q#10 Drawings 195 and 196 show a Reader Pedestal foundation detail and pole & mounting 

details. Which reader does this apply to?  
 
A#10 This Addendum No. 1 removes the Reader Pedestal Foundation and Pole Details on Plan Sheets 

I115 (195) and I116 (196).  
 
 
Q#11 Drawing  206 shows a reader cabinet & scanner mounting detail 9 that is mounted to the 

gantry supports. Which reader does this apply to? 
 
A#11 This Addendum No. 1 removes the Typical Cabinet Mount Detail 9 from Plan Sheet I126 (206). 

Use the Typical Cabinet Mound Detail 2 on Plan Sheet I134 (214). This enclosure is known as 
the AVI Cabinet.   

 
 
Q#12 In the civil drawings, there are numerous ODOT Type 6 Catch Basins called for on plan 

sheets C106 and C107. Normally OTIC calls for LSM backfill where ODOT will allow 
granular backfill. There are no plan details specifying the type of backfill. Please clarify if 
contractor is to use LSM or granular backfill for drainage structures. 
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A#12 Yes, LSM backfill is required for all ODOT Catch Basin, Type 6.  All drainage installation shall 
follow Special Provision SP611 as provided in the Specifications. 

 
 
Q#13 Plan sheets C106 and C107 show new water service and sanitary force main lines which get 

bored under the turnpike and we have a few questions: What type of pipe is to be used for 
the 1.25” water service? 

 
A#13  The water service shall be 1.25” Copper, Type K tubing per Piping Schedule in Specification 

Section 221116. 
 
 
Q#14 What type of pipe is to be used for the 2” carrier pipe for the water service? 
 
A#14 This Addendum No. 1 revises Plan Sheets C106 (18) and C107 (19) to show the 6” carrier pipe.   

The 6” carrier pipe for the water service shall be Steel Casing Pipe, Class 60 with spacers per 
Specification Section 330507.17. 

 
 
Q#15 What type of pipe is to be used for the 2” sanitary force main? 
 
A#15 The 2” sanitary force main carrier pipe shall be HDPE-SDR11 per Specification Section 

330507.17. 
 
 
Q#16 What type of pipe and diameter is to be used for the carrier pipe for the 2” sanitary force 

main? 
 
A#16 This Addendum No. 1 revises Plan Sheets C106 (18) and C107 (19) to show the 6” carrier pipe.   

The 6” carrier pipe for the Sanitary force main shall be Steel Casing Pipe, Class 60 with spacers 
per Specification Section 330507.17. 

 
 
Q#17 Is the carrier pipe for each required for entire length of line from building to building or will 

OTIC define limits of carrier pipe needs?  
 
A#17 Assume the carrier pipe goes from building to building.   
 
 
Q#18 What type of pipe is to be used for the 2” water service from the well to the south building? 
 
A#18 The water service shall be 2” Copper, Type K tubing per Piping Schedule in Specification Section 

221116.  An encasing pipe is not required for this waterline. 
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Q#19 The Cold-Formed Metal Framing specification 054000, 3.2 Installation states that the “cold-
formed steel framing may be shop or field fabricated for installation, or it may be field 
assembled.”  This appears to contradict the requirements of the Cold-Formed Steel Framing 
shown on S002, specifically note #5.  Do the load bearing walls need to be pre-fabricated? 

 
A#19 This Addendum No. 1 revises Plan Sheet S002 (35) to remove Cold-Formed Steel Framing Note 

5. The Specifications are correct as it is the Contractor option on method of framing. 
 
 
Q#20 Plan sheet C102 (14/214) contains a note for Item 659 seeding and mulching, as per 

plan.  While it is assumed that areas to get seed and topsoil are shown on C108 and C109 
within curbed areas around the buildings, there are utilities that are part of this package 
(storm, water, sanitary, electric) that outlet in areas outside the 39-20-01 access drives for 
which appear to be graded as part of the 39-20-01 project. Can OTIC please define all areas 
to receive topsoil and seed on this project? 

 
A#20 Plan Sheets C120 (32) & C121 (33) show the general routings of all utilities.  The Contractor 

should assume that all utility paths and the adjacent areas disturbed by the work shall be re-
established by providing topsoil and seeding as required by these Plans.  

 
 
Q#21 The typical sections shown on sheets C-113 and C-114 each have notes showing that 58-21-

01 contractor is responsible for embankment and topsoil. Contract 39-20-01B cross-sections 
give the vertical limits of building up embankments for which get stabilized on that contract. 
There is still vertical need for embankment to get to bottom of floor slabs, sidewalks, and 
grass areas. Assuming that the 58-21-01 contractor responsible for building up the footprint 
on both sides to bottom of finish floor/sidewalk/grass areas, will stockpiled embankment be 
available for this (39-20-01 plans called for the contractor to stockpile topsoil but nothing is 
mentioned about stockpiling embankment) built-up embankment in the building areas? 

 
A#21 No, the 58-21-01 Contactor is responsible for all embankment and topsoil as required to complete 

the Contract Work.  
 
 
Q#22 Please reference drawings E129 and E130. The following Duct Details are not used or 

referenced on site drawings: E129 detail 3 and 4, E130 details 1,2,3,4. 
Are these details specific to duct banks on this project?  If so, where are these duct banks located?  
 

A#22 This Addendum No. 1 revises Plan Sheets E102 (149), E103 (150), E129 (176) and C130 (177) to 
show the correct duct banks.  

 
 
Q#23 In the civil part of the plans, the concrete pavement and stone base through the toll plazas 

are specified.  Please verify if or if not the concrete parking areas on both sides are similar 
in depth and reinforcing. 
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A#23 Yes, the parking areas are the same.  For the depth and reinforcing requirements, refer to the 

Concrete Pavement Detail on Plan Sheet C119 (31).  
 
 
Q#24 Will the water service and sanitary force main need to be in casing? If so, what type of 

casing? There is no detail provided. 
 

A#24 See the responses to Q#14 and Q#16. 
 
 
Q#25 Should the carrier pipe be 2” for the Force main? What size casing would be needed if 

required? 
 
A#25 See the responses to Q#15 and Q#16.  
 
 
Q#26 The water service is called out to be 1.25” but the carrier pipe required is 2”, what size casing 

would be required if needed?  
 
A#26 See the responses to Q#14 and Q#18.  
 
 
Q#27 The hatching on sheet 8 indicates that the leach field and septic are to be included under the 

58-21-01 contract, however sheets 15 and 17 indicate that these are included in the 39-20-01 
scope.  Please confirm that the septic and leach field are not part of the 58-21-01 contract. 

 
A#27 This Addendum No. 1 revises the hatching on Plan Sheet G007 (008).  The septic system is part 

of the Contract for Project No. 39-20-01. 
 
 
Q#28  If the toll booths can be built in place on site, will the requirements of Specification 13 34 23 

– Prefabricated Toll Booths, Section 1.5A  Fabricator Qualifications be waived since these 
requirements all pertain to offsite fabrication? 

 
A#28 The Commission will respond to this question in Addendum No. 2. 
 
 
Q#29 Specification 13 34 23 – Prefabricated Toll Booths, paragraph 1.4A specifies that toll booths 

are to be inspected and approved by the Ohio  Board of Building Standards under the 
Industrialized Unit Program.  If the toll booths are built in place on site, will they be covered 
by the owner obtained building permit and inspected as such?  Or will it still be necessary to 
provide inspections under the Industrialized Unit Program? 

 
A#29 The Commission will respond to this question in Addendum No. 2. 
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Q#30 Specification 13 34 23 – Prefabricated Toll Booths, paragraph 1.4D requires a mockup of a 

toll booth be available for inspection.  If the toll booths are built in place on site will 
inspections occur during the course of construction or a single inspection upon 
completion?  Is the mockup to be approved prior to building the other seven toll booths? 

 
A#30 The Commission will respond to this question in Addendum No. 2. 
 
 
Q#31 If there are any fees involved for final electrical hookups to offsite 

electrical/communications/ITS/FO services, will OTIC reimburse the contractor or pay for 
the fees? 

 
A#31 The Commission will respond to this question in Addendum No. 2. 
 
 
Q#32 The specifications list mc cable but does not explain where it can be used.  Can MC Cable be 

used where it will be concealed in walls and ceilings for power and lighting? 
 
A#32 The Commission will respond to this question in Addendum No. 2. 
 
 
In addition to the Plan Sheets that required revisions or were added to the Contract Documents due to 
the questions answered in Addendum No. 1, the remaining Plan Sheets not identified within the answers 
to Addendum No. 1, whether revised or added, are included with this Addendum No. 1 and incorporated 
into this Contract. 
 
 
Changes to the Specifications: Deletions are shown with strikethrough text. 

Changes / Additions are shown with bold italicized text. 
 

Changes to the Drawings: Additions and deletions are indicated with a cloud and revision 
triangle thus:              

 
      

 
 

 
END OF ADDENDUM NO. 1 
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